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ADDENDUM #1 
Public Health 

Stormwater User Fee Analysis 
RFP # 7143-20 

 
 

May 18, 2020 
 
The attached addendum supersedes the original Information and Specifications 
regarding RFP # 7143-20 where it adds to, deletes from, clarifies or otherwise modifies. 
All other conditions and any previous addendums shall remain unchanged. 
 
Please note: Due to COVID-19, BIDS will only be accepted electronically by emailing 
purchasing@bouldercounty.org.  
 

 
1. Question: On p. 10, when discussing page limits for the various sections, can you 

confirm that the Executive Summary (2 double sided sheets/4 pages); References; 
and all additional, required RFP forms do not count in the 20 double sided sheet/40 
page limit placed on the Description of Services, Deliverables, and Estimated 
Project Schedule section? 

 
        ANSWER: Correct, the Executive Summary (2 double sided sheets/4 pages); 

References; and all additional, required RFP forms do not count in the 20 double 
sided sheet/40 page limit placed on the Description of Services, Deliverables, and 
Estimated Project Schedule section. 

 
2. Question: The Sample Contract includes insurance requirements for Pollution 

Liability, Third Party Commercial Crime Insurance/Third Party Fidelity Bond, 
Privacy/Cyber Liability Insurance, and Sexual Abuse and Molestation Coverage (see 
pages 28 and 29 of 42).  Will these coverages be required for the type of work 
anticipated on this contract? 

 
        ANSWER: The Sample Contract is just a sample. The actual required insurance for 

any awarded work is listed in the “Insurance and W-9 Requirements” section of 
the RFP on page 11 of 42. 
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3. Question: Does Boulder County have a Stormwater Master Plan?  If so, could you 

provide a copy or a link to the Master Plan? 
 

ANSWER: Boulder County, like most Colorado counties, does not have a 
Stormwater Master Plan and does not provide elaborate drainage services. Each 
of the stormwater functions (stormwater quality protection, floodplain 
management, and drainage) are provided by separate departments with 
somewhat different historic “service areas.” Specifically, county led stormwater 
quality protection is currently only required in the urbanized area near 
subdivisions, floodplain management is currently only required in the regulatory 
floodplain, and storm drain cleaning is mainly performed on rural culverts in the 
mountains. Additional services are provided by the Mile High Flood District within 
the district boundaries. 

 
4. Question: Prior to this solicitation for user fee analysis, has Boulder County 

performed a stormwater user fee funding related feasibility study? If so, could you 
provide a copy or a link to that feasibility study? 

 
ANSWER: Boulder County has not performed a stormwater user fee funding 
related feasibility study prior to this solicitation. This solicitation and project will 
be the first time that Boulder County has collectively considered a stormwater 
user fee.  
 

5. Question: Could you affirm that in Task 6, the County is seeking an evaluation of 
potential rate structure options and its implications, but not the development of 
final rate schedules for a draft rate ordinance? 

 
ANSWER: That is correct. In Task 6, the County is seeking an evaluation of 
potential rate structure options and its implications, but not the development of 
final rate schedules for a draft rate ordinance. 
 

6. Question: Will the County be able to provide a description of available geo-spatial 
data, including the parcel polygons, for this study? 

 
ANSWER: Yes, Boulder County has parcel polygons. Boulder County also has 
individual parcel-level data that may or may not be useful in determining rate and 
billing options. Boulder County can provide geo-spatial data to the contractor that 
is awarded this work. Much of Boulder County’s geo-spatial data is publicly 
available at: http://gis.bouldercounty.opendata.arcgis.com/  

 
7. Question: Can the County provide an impervious area layer and/or data at the 

individual parcel level, for this study? 
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ANSWER: No, Boulder County has not developed an impervious area layer. We do 
have parcel polygons and individual parcel-level data that may or may not be 
useful in determining rate and billing options. Please also see the answer to 
Question No. 12 below. 
 

8. Question: Could you provide a brief description of the type of aerial and/or Ortho 
Imagery, infra-red data, the resolution of the imagery, and the year the imagery 
was developed for the County’s service area? 

 
ANSWER: Boulder County has 3” and 9” imagery from 2018 and is acquiring 
imagery in 2020. The 2018 imagery covers most of the county and can viewed at 
https://maps.boco.solutions/propertysearch/. The 2020 imagery will be covering 
a few gaps at the extreme southern edge of the county. This imagery is 3-band 
and does not have infrared data. Boulder County can provide this information to 
the contractor that is awarded this work, as part of Task 6.  
 

9. Question: The RFP indicates that the bidder should provide, “A unit and rate 
schedule for services and deliverables, itemized by task.”   Is the bidder expected to 
provide the project fee amount and average rate by task? 

 
ANSWER: No, that seems too difficult. We are most interested in the total project 
cost, the cost of each task, and the staff that will be assigned. The staffing plan 
can be used to address staff rates. Thank you for this question, we will revise this 
specification in the future. 
 

10. Question: Sustainability Questionnaire – Confirming this is optional? The questions 
appear to be focused on vendors or contractors.  

 
ANSWER: The Sustainability Questionnaire must be completed and turned in, 
even though for this RFP it does not factor into the evaluation criteria. 
 

11. Question: Is there any schedule deadlines or milestones associated with any of the 
tasks or the project important to the County? 

 
ANSWER: The important milestones are listed in Section 3 of the RFP 
Specifications. Ideally, all work would be completed by 12/31/2020. If that is not 
possible, a request will be made to roll-over the remaining funds to the next 
calendar (fiscal) year. 
 

12. Question: Is impervious surface data available and approximately how much of the 
county does it cover (percent wise) or does it just cover the urbanized areas? 

 
ANSWER: No, Boulder County has not developed an impervious area layer. We do 
have parcel polygons and individual parcel-level data that may or may not be 
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useful in determining rate and billing options. Also, the Denver Regional Council 
of Governments (DRCOG) has developed edge of pavement polygons from 2018 
imagery for portions of Boulder County. This may or may not be useful to 
vendors, but is available at https://data.drcog.org/dataset/edge-of-pavement-
polygons-2018.  

 
13. Question: Is there a listing of past capital improvements with identified funding 

sources over the last 3-5 years that can be provided? 
 

ANSWER: A list of Public Works Department drainage improvement projects is 
provided as Exhibit 1 below. 
 

14. Question: Can you provide a sample property tax bill / statement? 
 

ANSWER: A sample property tax bill / statement is provided as Exhibit 2 below.  
 

15. Question: Do we need to provide certificates of insurance for our sub-consultants? 
 

ANSWER: Boulder County only executes a contract with the prime 
contractor/vendor, and the prime contractor does not need to provide 
certificates of insurance for its subcontractors. However, a contract will require 
subcontractors to carry identical insurance to the requirements Boulder County 
has set for the prime contractor.  Maintaining those certificates of insurance and 
passing the necessary insurance requirements on to the subcontractors would be 
the responsibility of the prime contractor/vendor. 
 

16. Question: Can staff resumes be included in an appendix and, if so, do they count 
towards the page number limit? 

 
ANSWER: Staff resumes can be included in an appendix and this will not count 
towards the page number limit. Please be aware that the qualifications of 
individual staff members will need to be generally addressed as part of your 
proposal’s staffing plan.  

 
 
Submittal Instructions: 
 

Submittals are due at the email box only, listed below, for time and date recording on 
or before 2:00 p.m. Mountain Time on May 27, 2020. 
 
Please note that email responses to this solicitation are limited to a maximum of 
50MB capacity. NO ZIP FILES ALLOWED. Electronic Submittals must be received in 
the email box listed below.  Submittals sent to any other box will NOT be forwarded 
or accepted.  This email box is only accessed on the due date of your questions or 

https://data.drcog.org/dataset/edge-of-pavement-polygons-2018
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proposals. Please use the Delivery Receipt option to verify receipt of your email. It is 
the sole responsibility of the proposer to ensure their documents are received 
before the deadline specified above. Boulder County does not accept responsibility 
under any circumstance for delayed or failed email or mailed submittals. 
 
Email purchasing@bouldercounty.org; identified as RFP # 7143-20 in the 

subject line. 
 
All proposals must be received and time and date recorded at the purchasing email by 
the above due date and time.  Sole responsibility rests with the Offeror to see that their 
bid is received on time at the stated location(s).  Any bid received after due date and 
time will be returned to the bidder.  No exceptions will be made. 
 
The Board of County Commissioners reserve the right to reject any and all bids, to waive 
any informalities or irregularities therein, and to accept the bid that, in the opinion of 
the Board, is in the best interest of the Board and of the County of Boulder, State of 
Colorado. 
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RECEIPT OF LETTER 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
 
 
May 18, 2020 
 
 
Dear Vendor: 
 
This is an acknowledgment of receipt of Addendum #1 for RFP #7143-20, Stormwater 
User Fee Analysis. 
 
In an effort to keep you informed, we would appreciate your acknowledgment of 
receipt of the preceding addendum.  Please sign this acknowledgment and email it back 
to purchasing@bouldercounty.org as soon as possible. If you have any questions, or 
problems with transmittal, please call us at 303-441-3525. This is also an 
acknowledgement that the vendor understands that due to COVID-19, BIDS will only be 
accepted electronically by emailing purchasing@bouldercounty.org. 
 
Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.  This information is time and date 
sensitive; an immediate response is requested.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Boulder County Purchasing 
 
 
 
Signed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Name of Company_____________________________________________ 
 
     End of Document 
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Exhibit 1: Drainage Projects, 2016-2020 
1. Doudy Draw at SH-170, Davidson Ditch Bypass (Flood Recovery), $188,000, Capital Improvement – 

Regional Sales Tax (2019) 
2. Monarch Road at Dry Creek No. 2 Minor Structure Replacement (Drainage Improvement), $260,000, 

Capital Improvement – Road and Bridge Fund (2016) 
3. Airport Road Bridge over Left Hand Creek Stream Restoration (Flood Recovery), Road and Bridge 

Fund (2020) 
4. North County Line Road at Little Thompson River (Flood Recovery), $383,000, FEMA Assistance 

(2018) 
5. N 83rd Street over Little Thompson Bridge Replacement (Flood Recovery), $3.33M, FEMA Assistance 

(2016) 
6. N 83rd Street at Dry Creek No. 2 Minor Structure Replacement (Drainage Improvement), $2.5M, 

Road and Bridge Fund (2017) 
7. Wagon Wheel Gap Road, Five (5) culvert/bridge replacements (Flood Recovery), $9.9M, FEMA 

Assistance (2017) 
8. Logan Mill Road at Fourmile Creek Bridge Replacement (Flood Recovery), $2.6M, FEMA Assistance 

(2018) 
9. James Canyon Road Reconstruction (Flood Recovery), $15M, FEMA Assistance (2017) 
10. Left Hand Canyon/Glendale Gulch Road/Culvert (Flood Recovery), $1.07M, Department of Housing 

and Urban Development (HUD) Assistance (2019) 
11. Baseline Road at Dry Creek No. 3 Minor Structure Replacement (Drainage Improvement CIP), $1.3M, 

Mile High Flood District Cost-Sharing (In Design – Construction planned for 2021) 



Exhibit 2
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